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2664 Riva Road, P.O. Box 6675 

Annapolis, MD  21401 

410-222-7450 

 

 

Jason M. Schwier 

Chair, Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

 

November 8, 2023 

 

Ms. Jenny Jarkowski 

Anne Arundel County Office of Planning and Zoning 

2664 Riva Road, 4th Floor 

Annapolis, MD 21401 

 

Re: Comments on proposed Academy Yard, Phase 2, at 8335 & 8339 Telegraph Road 

 

Dear Ms. Jarkowski: 

 

This letter constitutes a response by the Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee (OTCAC) to 

the requests from the developers of the Academy Yard, Phase 2, construction of approximately 

298 multi-family residential units and 42,000 square feet of retail to be located at 8335 and 8339 

Telegraph Road in Odenton, MD as presented to the Committee on October 24, 2023. The 

Committee recommends approval of the proposed development project, one modification, and 

six flexibility requests. The OTCAC sustained its prior approval of four modifications and one 

flexibility request. Lastly, the Committee declined to hold an opinion on the modification request 

with respect to the Public Road Design Manual Criteria as this is a modification to a County 

Manual and is outside the scope of the Odenton Town Center Master Plan (OTCMP). 

 

The presentation outlined a completely new rework of the site and proposes to provide three 

high-density residential buildings, 37 townhouses, a grocery store, a retail center, and a drive-

through retail center. Academy Yard, Phase 2, is located within the OTC-COR subarea, 

Regulatory Block 7 of the Odenton Town Center and is classified for East Core Mix usage. 

Dependent upon the type of retail use, all proposed residential and retail are approved uses per 

the 2016 OTCMP. This presentation marks the third time the developer presented this project to 

the Committee. Academy Yard, Phase 2, was previously presented to the OTCAC on December 

3, 2020 and January 25, 2022. The Committee recommended approval of the Academy Yard, 

Phase 2, plans after both previous presentations. For reference, the previous letters submitted by 

the OTCAC are included with this letter. 

 

The applicant listed six modification and seven flexibility requests that the OTCAC considered. 

The thirteen requests are accompanied by eleven proffers. The OTCAC appreciates the 

significance of the proffers, but did not take an official stance, as they were discussed in our 

previous letters. The Committee wants to emphasize the complexity of the site as a brownfield 

remediation, however, and its appreciation as an included proffer. 
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Modification Requests 1-4: 

• Stream/Buffer Impacts 

• Flood Plain Impacts 

• Wetland/Buffer Impacts 

• Forest Clearing 

OTCAC Recommendation: Sustain prior recommendation of approval 

OTCAC Comment: The Committee recognized the challenges that this site faces with 

each of the impacts. Committee members were very impressed with the inclusion of 

restoration projects that undo impacts that currently exist. The Committee determined 

that it would not deviate from its previous position that these modifications are 

recommended for approval. 

 

Modification Request 5: 

• Public Road Design Manual Criteria 

OTCAC Recommendation: No opinion 

OTCAC Comment: The Committee recognized the goal of the County and the developer 

in constructing a functional, aligned Pine Street extension. As this proposal is a request 

for a modification to the County’s Public Road Design Manual Criteria, it is outside the 

scope of the OTCMP. 

 

Modification Request 6: 

• Roadway Classification and Streetscape Requirements 

OTCAC Recommendation: Approve 

OTCAC Comment: The Committee recognized the need for flexibility in the streetscapes, 

especially with the focus of the developer to ensure that Academy Yard, Phase 2, visually 

fit into the Odenton community and did not cause unnecessary future troubles for County 

maintenance. The Committee lauded the developer for proposing logical and sensible 

changes to the streetscape. For example, the proposal to have the streetscape for the Pine 

Street extension match the already existing streetscape to create a flowing seamless 

boundary between developments is a practical modification request. Similarly, the 

request to ensure that the curb on Mount Vernon was not placed on top of a water main is 

a common-sense request to prevent high County maintenance costs in the future. 

 

Flexibility Requests 1-6: 

• Modified Mixed-Use Percentages 

• Single-Use Phases 

• No timetable 

• Modify Building Setbacks 

• Modify Road Sections 

• Permit Parking Lots between buildings and the public street 

OTCAC Recommendation: Approve 

OTCAC Comment: The Committee recognized the OTCMP requirements in multiple 

areas would make development of this site extraordinarily difficult. The OTCAC 

understands that accommodations need to be made in order for this development to be 

successful, recover the investment of remediating a brownfield site, and turn an eyesore 

in Odenton into an area people will want to live and shop. 
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Flexibility Request 7: 

• Building Height 

OTCAC Recommendation: Sustain prior recommendation of approval 

OTCAC Comment: For completeness, the developer requested flexibility equivalent to 

their previous request in 2022 regarding the appearance of two-story retail. The 

Committee determined that it would not deviate from its previous position that this 

flexibility request is recommended for approval. 

 

The OTCAC recommends approval of the proposal for Academy Yard, Phase 2, and commends 

the developer for taking on the challenge of remediating a brown-field site, preserving the 

natural areas to a great extent, and working to ensure that the proposal greatly enhanced the 

Odenton Community. Committee members appreciate the opportunity to participate in the 

development process. Please let us know if you need further information or have questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Jason M. Schwier, Chair 

Odenton Town Center Advisory Committee 
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